
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
September 3, 2009, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 6, 2009 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 
regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting. 


D. Authorize GM to submit ballot for election of CSDA Board of Directors 
representative 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 09-21, Overruling 


Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charges for the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Adoption by Title Only of Ordinance 40, Adding Policy 


Numbers 3020.142 through 3020.148 to the District’s Policy & Procedures, 
Capacity Charge (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 funding from 


the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee/Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B; and  


 
Approval of Resolution 09-22, Amending the 2010-2015 Capital Improvement 
Program to include the Bonita Terrace Project ($238,000) with FY 2009-10 
projects and Amending the Request for Grant Funding from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency and the RRROC for FY 2009-10 and 2001-11 to include 
the Bonita Terrace Project and to request 75% funding (Est. time 30 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 09-23, Approving the Second 


Amendment to Services Agreement Between Sweetwater Springs Water District 
and Dale Dross (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
E. Discussion/Action re District reserve policy (Est. time 30 min.) 
 
F. Discussion re Russian River water shortage (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re Potential disposition of District property (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
 A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Personnel Exception: Performance 


Evaluation: General Manager 
  


 2







 3


 B. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to subdivision (f) of Section 54957.6 
of the Government Code. 


  District Negotiator: Board of Directors (Mike Gogna, District counsel) 
  Unrepresented employees: Steve Mack, General Manager  


 
C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 
 
 D. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
August 6, 2009 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Jim Quigley 
 Sukey Wilder 
 Gaylord Schaap 
  
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District counsel 
      John Uniack 
      Lloyd Guccione 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 


 
The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Victoria Wikle at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle suggested holding Closed Session no later than 9:30 p.m.  There were no 
objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Wilder moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion 
carried 5-0, except that Director Schaap abstained from voting on Item III-A.  The following items 
were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 9, 2009 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  


 1







(1) Letter received 7/20/09 from Utility Cost Management to Stephen Mack 
re Review of electricity accounts 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
Public comment was made by John Uniack. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.) 


A. (6:34 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Possible ordinance revising District capacity 
charge.  Customer Lloyd Guccione provided an overview of this item.  Public comment 
was made by John Uniack.  The GM provided further comments.  Discussion ensued.  
No action was taken.  


B. (6:50 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 40, Adding 
Policy Numbers 3020.142 through 3020.148 to the District’s Policies & Procedures, 
Capacity Charge.  Director Wikle introduced this item.  The Board Clerk read the title of 
the Ordinance into the record.  The GM made a PowerPoint presentation.  Board 
questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Director Schaap 
moved to introduce by title only and waive reading of Ordinance 40, Adding Policy 
Numbers 3020.142 through 3020.148 to the District’s Policies & Procedures, Capacity 
Charge.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


C. (7:04 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Application for FY 2009-10 funding from the 
Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee/Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by John Uniack.  Public comment 
was made by Lloyd Guccione.  The GM provided further comments.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Director Wikle moved to accept the application for FY 2009-10 funding from 
RRROC and the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency, including the additional 
mainline improvements on Bonita Terrace.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


D. (7:44 p.m.) Discussion re Russian water shortage.  The GM made a PowerPoint 
presentation.  Board questions ensued.  No action was taken.  


E. (8:02 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Potential disposition of District property.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made 
by Lloyd Guccione.  Direction was given to staff to (1) Inventory District properties; and 
(2) Pursue the cost of an appraisal from three qualified appraisers.   


*** At 8:26 p.m. a break was announced.  The meeting reconvened at 8:33 p.m. *** 


F. (8:26 p.m.) Discussion re Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures (4th Quarter, FY 2008-
09, Operations and Capital).  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Brief discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken. 


G. (8:44 p.m.) Discuss/Action re District goals and objectives.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  This item was scheduled for annual 
review. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:55 p.m.) 
 


 2







The GM provided an overview of the following subjects and Board questions were directed 
throughout: 
 
1. Laboratory Testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Capital Improvement Projects 
5. Rainfall 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(9:07 p.m.) 


 
Director Smith announced that she attended the Save the Land & Water event. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:08 p.m.) 
 
At 9:08 p.m. President Wikle announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 9:09 p.m. 
the Board went into Closed Session. At 9:19 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, 
et al.  


  No action was taken. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:20 p.m.) 
 
1. Adoption of Ordinance 40 re Capacity charge 
2. Public hearing re Flat Charges 
3. District Reserve policy 
4. RRROC Application 
6. Meter reading contract 
7. GM evaluation (Closed Session)  
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:23 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  


 3







 4


 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:55 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(9:07 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:08 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:20 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 3 
  
Subject: Election of Representative to the CSDA Board of Directors 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Authorize staff to complete and submit ballot. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
CSDA has mailed the District a ballot to elect one (1) representative from three (3) candidates to sit on 
the CSDA Board of Directors.   
 
Staff has reviewed the candidate statements and recommends that the District vote for Kathryn Slater-
Carter. 
  
Should any of the SSWD Board wish to weigh in on the ballot selection, or whether the District 
should submit a ballot at all, this item should be pulled from the Consent Calendar for 
discussion.   
 
  


 








   
    


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting 
Date: September 3, 2009 Subject: Public Hearing re Annual Flat Rate Assessment 
   


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


• Open Public Hearing 
• Take public comment 
• Close Public Hearing 
• Adopt Resolution 09-21, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on the annual flat charge 


at the same level as last year 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
The FY 2008-09 assessment generated approximately $704,304 in annual revenues.  This does not 
include $23,497 received this year for back flat charges on new services constructed, nor does it 
include interest earned on assessment revenue in FY 2008-09. 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


On an annual basis since July 1992, the District has imposed a flat charge for each separate water 
connection to a property.  Currently set at $198/water connection, the funds collected are largely used 
to pay for debt service on the original purchase of the water system and facility upgrades.   
 
This annual charge is added to the tax bill and collected by the County, along with all other county 
property taxes and assessments.   


 
 







Resolution No. 09-21 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT OVERRULING PROTESTS AND CONFIRMING 


REPORT ON ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE FOR SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT. 


 
 WHEREAS, this Board did on July 14, 1992, adopt Ordinance No. 8 which 
established an annual flat charge, and authorized collection of such charge on the tax 
roll of the County of Sonoma, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared a written report containing a description of 
each parcel of real property receiving services and facilities from the District and the 
amount of the flat charge for each parcel for the 2009-10 fiscal year, and 
 
 WHEREAS,  said written report has been on file with the Clerk of said District, 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  notice appointing the time and place of hearing protests on said 
report was duly given in the manner provided by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all written protests and other written communications were publicly 
read at said meeting and all persons desiring to be heard were fully heard, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 
 
 1. That objections to and protests against said report were not made by the 
owners of a majority of the separate parcels of property described in the report against 
which charges for services and facilities provided by the District were fixed. 
 
 2. That all objections to and protests against said report have been heard by 
this Board and that said objections and protests be, and each of them is hereby 
overruled. 
 
 3. That said report be, and it is hereby adopted in full with the revisions to 
each charge as specified therein, and that said charges shall be collected on the tax roll 
of the County of Sonoma, in the manner provided by law. 
 
 4. That the Clerk of this District be, and he is hereby directed to file with the 
County Auditor of Sonoma County, on or before the 4th day of September, 2009 a copy 
of said report, upon which shall be endorsed over her signature a statement that the 
report has been finally adopted by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT. 
 
 5. That the County Auditor of Sonoma County, shall upon receipt of said 
report, enter the amount of the charges against the respective lots or parcels as they 
appear on the assessment roll. 
 


***************************** 







 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on September 
3, 2009, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Gaylord Schaap       
Wanda Smith        
Victoria Wikle        
Jim Quigley        
Sukey Robb-Wilder       


 
 
 


            
      Julie A. Kenny 
      Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
Gaylord Schaap       
 
Wanda Smith        
 
Victoria Wikle        
 
Jim Quigley        
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       


 
 





		Item V-A, Public Hearing re Annual Flat Charge

		Meeting



		Item V-A.1 - RES 09-21  Annual Flat Charges






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 40 REVISING DISTRICT CAPACITY 
CHARGE  


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt, by reading of title only, Ordinance No. 40,  
An Ordinance of Sweetwater Springs Water District Adding Policy Numbers 3020.142 
through 3020.148 to the District’s Policy and Procedures, Capacity Charge.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Adoption of Ordinance No. 40 would have the financial impact of 
adding the principal and interest costs of existing and future loans to capacity charges 
for new connections.  The amount of new revenue is not expected to be substantial. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Ordinance No. 40 revising the District’s Capacity Charge was introduced at the August 
6, 2009 Board meeting.  The explanation of the capacity charge, the need for revision, 
and analysis that went into the revised charges were presented at that meeting, and 
are copied from that report below.  Since that meeting, staff have received no 
comments on the Ordinance or the proposed revisions to the capacity charge. Upon 
adoption at this meeting, the revised capacity charge would come into effect on projects 
being accepted by the District after October 3, 2009.  
 
Capacity Charge Explanation: 
 
Capacity charges are the charge for a new connection to buy into the District’s 
infrastructure.   Government Code §66013  defines capacity charge as “a charge for 
public facilities in existence at the time a charge is imposed or charges for new 
public facilities to be acquired or constructed in the future that are of proportional 
benefit to the person or property being charged, including supply or capacity 
contracts for rights or entitlements, real property interests, and entitlements and 
other rights of the local agency involving capital expense relating to its use of 
existing or new public facilities.  A "capacity charge" does not include a commodity 
charge.”    
 
The District’s current capacity charge, is based on repayment of the original bonds 
that were issued to purchase the Citizen’s Utilities facilities and provide some level of 
upgrades.  The current capacity charge is $3,665 and increases by $245 per year.   
The District has a one size fits all capacity charge – large commercial or multifamily 







Ordinance No. 40. District Capacity Charge 2  
September 3, 2009 


projects get charged the same as a single family residence.  Staff, in reviewing the 
current capacity charge noticed an inequity to the one size all fits all approach - 
larger projects are benefiting to the detriment of smaller projects and that the 
historic loans have the same benefit – funding capital infrastructure - to new 
projects as the bond payments do.  As such, staff have investigated possible 
capacity charge approaches, have done an investigation of possible changes, and 
recommends the revisions included in Ordinance No. 40.  Exhibit A, Sweetwater 
Springs Water District Capacity Charge (Buy-in Fee) Investigation and 
Recommendations, July 2009, presents the results of the investigation.  Ordinance 
No. 40 implements the recommendations of the investigation.   
 
Ordinance 40 keeps the general approach of using the bond payments, but also adds 
historical loan payments to the capacity charge.  It also adds a meter multiplier to 
the base capacity charge to reflect the larger capacity needs of projects that need 
larger meters.   
 
With the adoption of Ordinance 40, capacity charge for FY 2010 will increase from 
$3,465 to $3,763.20 for a project requiring a 5/8” meter.  For projects requiring 
larger meters, the base charge would be multiplied by the meter multipliers used for 
District commercial water rates.    
 
Other important features of the Ordinance include:  
 


• Each year the capacity charge will increase $245 plus the annual Capital Debt 
Reduction Charges for the Fiscal Year (which is $58.20 in FY 10). 


• Capacity charges for meters larger than 5/8 inch will be increased by the 
American Water Works Association (AWWA) capacity multiplier – 2.5 for one 
inch, 5 for 1.5 inch and 8 for 2 inch.  


• New connections will get credit for capacity charges already made.  For 
example, a project requiring a 2 inch meter going onto a property that already 
has a 1 inch meter would pay the difference between charges for the two 
meters. 


• Multiple meters associated with a new project will have the capacity charges 
for the meters added together. 


• Fire protection capacity does not pay a capacity charge.  For example, all new 
single family homes require a one inch meter for fire protection purposes.  
Those projects will pay the base capacity charge, because the larger meter 
size is for capacity for a fire suppression system.  


 
This change will not result in substantial new revenues to the District.  In a normal 
economy the District receives approximately 10 requests for new meters or meter 
upgrades per year.  There are two large projects under consideration – the 
Guernewood Park Resort and Fife Commons Housing – that would be affected by the 
meter multiplier, but their eventual construction is not certain.  The change will 
result in more equity for all District customers as new connections will be paying a 
fairer share for existing infrastructure.   
 







ORDINANCE NO. 40 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADDING  
POLICY NUMBERS 3020.142 THROUGH 3020.148 TO THE DISTRICT’S POLICY 


AND PROCEDURES, CAPACITY CHARGE  
  
  


WHEREAS, the capacity charge allows customers who establish a new 
connection or upgrade an existing connection to “buy in” or purchase capacity in the 
existing water production, treatment and distribution system, and thereby obtain 
benefits from the Sweetwater Springs Water District's ("District") water system; and  


 
WHEREAS, the current District capacity charge approach does not account 


for new connections’ differing capacity needs and does not include all historical 
capital costs; and 


 
WHEREAS, the District has a capacity charge for new connections to the 


District system which is currently based on the partial cost of providing water service 
through those new connections, which includes repayment of historic bond costs, 
but does not include repayment of historic loan costs; and 


 
WHEREAS, the capacity charge should also include historic and future loan 


costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the meter multiplier, based on American Water Works 


Association standards, used for the bimonthly Commercial Base Charge 
appropriately provides a basis for determining a new project’s need for, and 
proportional impact upon, District facilities and infrastructure; and  


 
WHEREAS, District staff have investigated the capacity charge approach and 


have developed a cost derivation methodology, which includes repayment of historic 
bond and loan costs, both shown in Exhibit A, and found the following;  


 
• New connections should be credited for existing capacity that exists at 


the location of the new connection; and  
 


• Fire protection capacity typically is not assessed for a capacity charge; 
and  


 
• The capacity charge amount should be increased each year to reflect 


additional bond and loan repayment costs; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the policy below is designed to ensure that a new water 
connection is charged a cost that is proportional to the benefits received by the 







Ordinance No. 40. Capacity Charge  2 
September 3, 2009 


project(s) being charged with respect to its share of the District facilities and 
infrastructure; and  
 
 WHEREAS, based on all the evidence presented, the District Board finds: 
 


1. The purpose of the water capacity charge is to assist in financing the 
replacement and renewal of existing water facilities, to upgrade and construct new 
water facilities and to reduce debt incurred by the District to accomplish same.  


 
2. The capacity charges collected pursuant to this Ordinance shall be used 


to finance the water facilities and infrastructure projects described in the District's 
Capital Improvement Plan and to reduce debt incurred by the District in constructing, 
improving and replacing said facilities and infrastructure. 
 


3. In adopting the capacity charges set forth herein, the District is exercising 
its powers under County Water District Law (Cal, Water Code §30000 et seq.) 
 


4. The record of proceedings establishes: 
 


(a) That there is a reasonable relationship between the use of the  
capacity charge set forth in this Ordinance and the type of projects and property on 
which such charge will be imposed in that all development in the District—both 
residential and non-residential—generates or contributes to the need for water 
facilities and infrastructure listed in the District's Capital Improvement Plan; and 


 
(b) That there is a reasonable relationship between the need for the 


facilities and infrastructure listed in the Capital Improvement Plan and the type of 
projects and property on which the capacity charge will be imposed in that new 
development in the District—both residential and non-residential—will contribute to 
the need for the facilities and infrastructure listed in the Capital Improvement Plan. 
  


5. The method of allocation of the capacity charges set forth in this 
Ordinance bears a fair relationship, and is roughly proportional, to the anticipated  
burden on, and benefit from, the water facilities and infrastructure to be funded by 
such charge, in that the charge is calculated based on the meter size required to 
provide the required level of water service. 
 
 6.  All notices and publications have been given in accordance with 
Government Code § 66016 and information relating to the increased charges was 
made available to the public ten days prior to the meeting pursuant to Government 
Code § 66016(a). 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  







Ordinance No. 40. Capacity Charge  3 
September 3, 2009 


 Section 1. Policy Numbers 3020.142 through 3020.148 of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District Policy & Procedures, are hereby added as 
follows.  
 
 


        3020.142.    Payment of District Capacity Charge as a Condition of Connecting 
to the District's Water System. 
 
            (a)    After the effective date of this ordinance, no person or entity will make 
any new connection to the District's water system without first paying the capacity 
charge established herein, unless the District otherwise waives or defers this 
requirement pursuant to a written agreement between the District and the applicant, 
approved by the District Board of Directors. 
 
            (b)    This capacity charge shall be in addition to all other fees and charges 
related to connection to and use of the District's water system, including but not 
limited to, any applicable charges for physical connection to the District's water 
system. 
 
            (c)    The capacity charge shall be nonrefundable. 
 
            (d)    The District reserves the right, at its sole discretion and under terms and 
in an amount determined by the District, to provide a credit against the capacity 
charge to, or enter into a reimbursement agreement with, any person or entity who 
constructs or installs facilities which are the subject of the capacity charge 
established herein. 
 
        3020.144.    Payment of Capacity Charge. 
 
            (a)    The entire capacity charge is to be paid within 30 days after the District 
approves an applicant's improvement plan for water service unless the District 
otherwise defers, waives, or modifies this requirement pursuant to a written 
agreement between the District and the applicant, approved by the Board of 
Directors.  
 
3020.146.    Calculation of District Capacity Charge. 
 
            (a)    Base Capacity Charge.  The minimum water capacity charge for 
residential, commercial, and other development is $3,763.20 for a connection 
requiring service with a capacity of a 5/8 inch meter. This amount is based on the 
sum of historical bond and loan payments through Fiscal Year 2010. 
 
            (b)    Annual Increase.  Beginning July 1, 2010, and continuing annually 
thereafter on that same month and day, the base capacity charge per 5/8 inch meter 
will be automatically increased $245 plus the total annual amount of the ensuing 
fiscal year Capital Debt Reduction Charge which reflects revenues needed to repay 
outstanding District loans.  
 
            (c)   Large Meter Capacity Charges.  The base capacity charge shall be 
increased for capacity needing meters larger than 5/8 inch.   







Ordinance No. 40. Capacity Charge  4 
September 3, 2009 


• A new connection requiring capacity for one inch meter shall be charged 2.5 
times the base capacity charge. 


• A new connection requiring capacity for 1.5 inch meter shall be charged 5 
times the base capacity charge.   


• A new connection requiring capacity for 2 inch meter shall be charged 8 times 
the base capacity charge. 


• A new connection requiring capacity for a meter larger than a 2 inch meter 
shall be charged the meter multiplier established by American Water Works 
Association Standards for that larger meter times the base capacity charge. 
 


(d) Fire Protection Capacity.  The capacity charge shall not be applied to meter 
capacity required for fire protection. 


 
(e) Upgrade in Existing Capacity.   If the District finds that a new project or 


improvement to an existing structure or structures at an existing connection 
will result in a capacity change that requires a larger meter, the customer 
will be charged for the new capacity in accordance with this section.  The 
customer will receive credit for the capacity already purchased.   


 
(f) Multiple Meters.  If a project requires multiple meters, the capacity charge will 


be the sum of capacity charges for each individual meter as established by 
this policy.   


 
 
        3020.148.    Capacity Charge Revenues Placed into the Capital Improvement 
Reserve Fund. 
 
            (a)    In accordance with Government Code section 66013, any charges 
collected pursuant to this Ordinance shall be placed in the Capital Improvement 
Reserve Fund. 
 
            (b)    Revenues from the capacity charge shall only be used for funding 
capital improvement projects or repayment of debt from bonds and loans that are 
used for capital improvement projects.   


 
  Section 2. Severance Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 
clause or phrase or word of this ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, 
unlawful or otherwise invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  The Board of Directors hereby 
declares that it would have passed and adopted this ordinance and each and all provisions 
thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more of said provisions be declared 
unconstitutional, unlawful or otherwise invalid. 
 
  Section 3. California Environmental Quality Act Compliance.   
 
The District Board finds and determines that the adoption of the capacity charge by this 
Ordinance constitutes the establishment of charges to obtain funds for capital projects 
necessary to provide and maintain the water service to those properties and/or projects that 







Ordinance No. 40. Capacity Charge  5 
September 3, 2009 


need new or expanded water service that are currently within the District's service 
boundaries.  Thus, pursuant to California Public Resources Code section 21080(b)(8), the 
District's adoption of a capacity charge is not subject to the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act.   
 
  Section 4. Effective Date. 
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date of its adoption by the 
Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was adopted this 3rd day of September, 2009, on roll call by the 
following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Wanda Smith:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Victoria Wikle 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item V-B - District Capacity Charge

		Item V-B.1 ORD 40 - Adding Capacity Charge to Policies and Procedures






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: UPDATE ON REQUEST FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM THE 
RUSSIAN RIVER REDEVELOPMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE/SONOMA 
COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR CIP IV-B, AND APPROVAL OF 
RESOLUTION 09-22 WHICH REVISES RESOLUTIONS 09-04 and 09-15 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 09-22, which  
 


1. Revises Resolution 09-04 amending the FY 2010-2015 CIP to add Bonita Terrace 
Mainline Replacement work, and  


2. Revises Resolution 09-15, the earlier request for grant funding from Sonoma 
County Redevelopment Agency (RDA) and the Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee (RRROC) for CIP IV-B, by adding the mainline replacement 
work on Bonita Terrace, and  


3. Revises Resolution 09-15 to request a grant amount of up to 75% of the 
construction cost estimate. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  The addition of Bonita Terrace to the CIP and grant request adds 
$238,000 to the total CIP cost amount.  The 75% grant request increases the total 
funding request to $2,228,750 which will fund approximately 75% of CIP IV-B, the 
Fiscal Year 2010 and 2011 projects of the District’s 2010-2015 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP).  Increasing the grant funding from 50% to 75% for CIP IV-B would 
enable the District to complete the 2010-2015 CIP as scheduled and have reserves 
above District policy to construct capital project beyond the six-year CIP.  This would 
allow the District to delay increasing the Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) as 
planned. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the June meeting the Board approved Resolution 09-15 requesting 50% grant 
funding from the RDA/RRROC for CIP IV-B.  Ongoing work with CIP IV-A, Project 2 
(50% funded by RDA/RRROC) identified mainline replacement work in Bonita 
Terrace as complementary to CIP IV-A, Project 2 and CIP IV-B, Project 1 and the 
Board directed the General Manager to add that project to the funding request at the 
August 07, 2009 meeting.  At this meeting the Board is asked to approve Resolution 
09-22 which revises Resolution 09-04 which approved the FY 2010-2015 CIP and 
Resolution 09-15 which is the original funding request resolution to add the Bonita 







RRROC/Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency Funding Request 2  
September 3, 2009 


Terrace project to the CIP and funding request.  The revised CIP is shown as Exhibit 
A to the Resolution.  Resolution 09-22 also increases the funding request to up to 
75% of the estimated construction cost (which will be discussed in the paragraphs 
below).   
 
At the RRROC meeting on August 20, 2009, RDA staff presented the District’s 50% 
funding request (including the Bonita Terrace element) to the RRROC and District 
staff participated in answering questions about the District CIP and funding request.  
The funding request was well received by the RRROC. The District got compliments 
for the current projects, and there was agreement from the RRROC that the District 
should ask for a higher funding amount – up to 100% of the construction cost.  
Kathleen Kane, RDA Executive Director, gave an explanation of RDA funding 
guidelines pointing out that for the District, RDA funding should be a source of last 
resort for funding and that RDA could not replace existing District funds.  Since the 
District does have approximately $300,000 per year available for capital projects and 
some available reserves, a 75% grant request looks like the highest level of grant 
funding possible.   The RRROC has a two meeting rule for funding requests above 
$25,000 and the changed funding request discussed here – brought up at the 
suggestion of RRROC members- can be presented at the September 17, 2009 
meeting 
 
Part of the RRROC support for a 75% grant was based on the possibility of rate relief 
for District customers.  District rates were recently restructured and the discussions 
regarding future rates included cost of living (COLA) increases for the Base Charge 
and Water Use Charge which fund the Operating Budget and increases to the Capital 
Debt Reduction Charge to fully recoup the principal and interest charges.  The 
District should keep with the COLA increases because operating expenses will 
continue to increase.  With a 75% grant, the District should consider delaying 
increases to the CDRC.  The increased grant amount will allow continued interest 
accumulation from the loan balance and other reserves to offset the private 
placement loan principal and interest payments for which the CDRC increases are 
targeted.   The contemplated CDRC increases would average approximately 2% per 
year for two years for a typical residential customer (of course being different for 
different customers).  
 
The District currently has an application in to the RDA staff for the 50% funding 
amount.  The District needs to be careful with a request for an increase in funding 
because, while this increase grant amount was suggested by the RRROC, ultimate 
approval is by the Board of Supervisors, who may have a different view of the 
funding request.  Resolution 09-22 is worded with an “up to” funding amount so that 
if the discussions with Sonoma County officials indicate that a 50% grant is the best 
we can expect, the application for funding can remain at that amount. 
 
Staff will be returning to the RRROC meeting on September 17, 2009 for a second 
presentation.  After the second meeting at RRROC, the funding request will move to the 
Board of Supervisors for final consideration.   







Resolution No. 09-22 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT REQUESTING GRANT FUNDING FROM SONOMA 


COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AND THE RUSSIAN RIVER 
REDEVELOPMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2010-2011, REVISING RESOLUTION 09-15 TO INCLUDE MAIN 
REPLACEMENT WORK ON BONITA TERRACE AND REVISING RESOLUTION 
09-04 WHICH APPROVED THE 2010-2015 CIP, TO INCLUDE SAID WORK 


ON BONITA TERRACE 
 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31007, the District Board of Directors shall 
establish rates and charges sufficient to pay for operating expenses, provide for repairs 
and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and interest on bonded debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31025, the District shall fix and through the 
General Manager collect water rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has evaluated the anticipated revenues and 
expenditures necessary to operate the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, portions of the Sweetwater Springs Water District customers are presently 
being served with antiquated, deteriorating infrastructure in serious need of repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 9, 2009 the Sweetwater Springs Board of Directors adopted 
Resolution 09-04 approving the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY 2010-2015 
identifying in excess of $6.8 million in capital improvement projects to make required 
improvements to the Sweetwater Springs Water District that would provide a greater 
proportion of the Ratepayers with adequate water pressure, storage, and fire flow, and 
reduce system leakage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the projects approved in the District’s CIP will reduce blight in the Russian 
River Redevelopment Area by upgrading infrastructure – both water storage and 
distribution, and paving streets and roads in needed areas allowing for and encouraging 
redevelopment of the project areas and thus will benefit the Russian River 
Redevelopment Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency and the Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee has previously approved 50% match funding for 
Sweetwater Springs Water District capital projects, CIP IV-A, Projects 1 and 2 and said 
projects are being successfully undertaken and completed in FY 2009 resulting in 
adequate water pressure, storage, and fire flow, and reducing system leakage in the 
areas of the projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted FY 2010-2015 CIP includes capital projects for FY 2010 and 
2011, called CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2, and said projects will complement the ongoing 
and recently constructed capital projects and also meet the objectives of improving 







Resolution No. 09-22        2 
September 3, 2009 


 
system water pressure, storage, and fire flow, and reduce system leakage in the areas 
of the projects and are described in Exhibit A which is attached; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District Board of Directors fully recognizes 
its fiduciary responsibility to fully fund the stated objectives of Resolution 09-04 and has 
implemented the following funding options: 
 


1. Approved a restructuring of water rates which included and overall 6% increase 
for FY 2010 and has plans for increasing water rates in each subsequent year to 
help fund capital projects. 


2. Acquired a $3 million loan in August 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District applied for funding for these projects 
through the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act, but these projects were not selected for funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District currently spends 36% of its revenue 
on existing debt principal and interest and additional loan funding is not practical; and  
 
WHEREAS, analysis of District financial planning shows that the District cannot 
complete the approved CIP with current funds available; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District Board of Directors recognizes that a 
greater than planned increase in District rates places a burden on the Ratepayers, and, 
therefore, the entire community, and that no other source of funding is available; and  
 
WHEREAS, at the June 4, 2009 meeting the District Board of Directors approved 
Resolution 09-15 which contained most the findings of this resolution and directed the 
General Manager to request 50% grant funding from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency in the amount of $1,144,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent investigations and work with CIP Phase IV-A, Project 2 in the 
Monte Rio Terraces identified additional main replacement work in Bonita Terrace that 
addresses needed repair work and is complementary to the work included in the FY 
2010 CIP projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, said work in Bonita Terrace is estimated to cost $238,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District’s request for grant funding was well received by the RRROC 
whose members suggested requesting a higher percentage of funding from the Sonoma 
County Redevelopment Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, analysis of the District’s availability of existing funds and the RDA funding 
guidelines appear to suggest that the District could ask for up to 75% of the construction 
cost and funding at that level would enable further District capital improvements and 
better rate stabilization. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the list of projects attached hereto as 







Resolution No. 09-22        3 
September 3, 2009 


 
Exhibit A, also known as CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2, as prepared by the General 
Manager for submission to the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency and the 
Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee, and accepts the information 
contained therein, and adopts the following: 
 


1. Revises Resolution 09-04 to approve the addition of the Bonita Terrace 
Project, estimated to cost $238,000, to year 2010 of the 2010-2015 CIP. 


 
2. Revises Resolution 09-15 to direct the General Manager to submit an 


application to the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency and the Russian 
River Redevelopment Oversight Committee for up to 75% grant funding for 
CIP IV-B which funding would total $2,228,750 and would be matched by 
District fund in the amount of $614, 250. 


  
3. Requests that the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee 


carefully consider recommending that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Sonoma County Community Development Commission (Commission) 
approve funding in the total amount of $2,228,750 for fiscal years 2010 and 
2011 funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP IV-B as identified in 
Exhibit A hereto.  


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on September 
3, 2009, by the following vote. 
 
 This Resolution was adopted this September 3, 2009, on roll call by the following 
vote: 
 
 Wanda Smith :   
 Victoria Wikle :   
 Jim Quigley:    
 Sukey Wilder:    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 
 
 
           
     Victoria Wikle 
     President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 







Resolution No. 09-22        4 
September 3, 2009 


 
 
 


Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District CIP IV-B 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2010  CIP IV-B, Project 1   


  


Schoolhouse Tank and Upper Schoolhouse Tank 
(MR) – Construct a storage tank with a capacity 
of approximately 65,000 gallons at the top of 
Bonita Terrace, install a booster station, and 
connect with replacement reservoir at Upper 
Schoolhouse site. This project fits well with CIP-
PHASE IV-A, PROJECT 2 distribution system 
improvements in the Monte Rio Terraces.    $638,000 


 


Bonita Terrace (MR) - Replace 1,500 ft of existing 
main and appurtences on Bonita Terrace, including 
ties to Schoolhouse Tank and  Delta Way (CIP IV-
A), to create a loop. $238,000 


  


Riverlands Road (GV) - Replace 1,600 lf of 
existing main and appurtenances in Riverlands 
Road, including two ties at Drake Road to create 
a loop. $393,000 


  


Handy Andy Booster Feed Line (GV) – Replace 
300 lf of existing main between Hwy 116 and the 
booster pump at Old Monte Rio Road. $59,000 


   
      


  2010 Total  $1,328,000 
2011  CIP IV-B, Project 2   


  


Alder Road, Pebble Way, & Heller Streets (MR) – 
On River Blvd, Alder Rd., Willow Rd., and 
Railroad Ave. replace existing mains and 
appurtenances with approximately 6,000 lf of 6-
inch water main to complete loop.  Abandon 
4,500 lf of parallel undersized water mains and 
transfer water services to larger main.  $1,515,000 


      


  2011 Total 
  


$1,515,000 


 Total CIP IV-B 
  


$2,843,000 
 
 





		Item V-C - September RRROC Funding Request

		Item V-C.1 - RES 09-22 -RESOLUTION to RRROC for grant funding






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AND DALE DROSS FOR METER 
READING SERVICES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approve Resolution 09-23 which approves the Second 
Amendment to Services Agreement between Sweetwater Springs Water District and 
Dale Dross for meter reading services. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The recommended action will increase meter reading costs by approximately 
seven percent in FY 2010 or approximately $2,250 for the year.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District decided to hire an independent contractor for meter reading services in 2002 and 
entered into an agreement with Dale Dross for those services.  The agreement states that Mr. 
Dross shall be paid $1.40 per correctly read meter.  Since that time the agreement has not been 
changed with respect to the cost per meter.  The District did enter into a contract amendment to 
extend the term on the contract in March 2008.  Mr. Dross has approached staff with a request 
to increase the per meter charge.  After discussions with the General Manager, Mr. Dross agreed 
to a three year contract extension with an increase of $.10 in the first year for a cost of $1.50 
per meter, a $.05 increase in the second year for a per  meter cost of $1.55 and an increase of 
$.05 in the third year for a per meter cost of $1.60.   
 
The independent contracting approach to meter reading has been a success and Mr. Dross has 
performed these services in an exemplary manner.  He has learned much about the District in 
the past seven years and provides the District much more than just meter reading – he locates 
many leaks both on the District side of the meter and on the customer side, and he identifies 
other issues out in the field as well and notifies staff.  A per meter cost increase in the 
agreement is appropriate given the increase in costs in the past seven years and Mr. Dross’s 
knowledge of the system.   With the cost increase included in this contract amendment, District 
meter reading is still being done cost effectively.   







 
Resolution No. 09-23 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO 


THE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND DALE 
DROSS FOR METER READING SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE 


GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT   


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), entered into an 
agreement with Dale Dross to serve as an independent contractor meter reader for the 
District in November 2002; and 


 WHEREAS, the District approved an amendment to the contract on March 2008 
extending the term of the agreement to March 2011; and 


 WHEREAS, the financial terms of the original 2002 contract, which are $1.40 for 
each correctly read meter, have not been changed since its inception; and 


 WHEREAS, the District’s General Manager has negotiated changes in the 
contract which extends the contract for three years to 2012, increases the cost per 
meter by $.10 in the first year and $.05 per meter in each of the two ensuing years, and 
makes other clarifying changes to the original agreement; and  


 WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to the Agreement is attached as Exhibit A. 


  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE DISTRICT that the Second Amendment to the Agreement with Dale Dross is 
hereby approved and the General Manager is authorized to execute in on behalf of the 
District. 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on July 9, 
2009, by the following vote. 
 
  







Resolution No. 09-23        2 
September 3, 2009 


This Resolution was adopted this July 9, 2009, on roll call by the following vote: 
 
 Wanda Smith:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Jim Quigley:    
 Sukey Wilder:   
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 
 
 
           
     Victoria Wikle 
     President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 







EXHIBIT A.  SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AND DALE DROSS 


 
This Second Amendment (“Amendment”) to a Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is entered into by and 
between SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT (“District”) and Dale Dross (“Contractor”) as of 
September _______, 2009.   
 


WHEREAS, the parties entered into a Services Agreement dated effective November 14, 2002 (the 
“Original Agreement”) for Contractor to provide meter reading and other services; and 


WHEREAS, the parties subsequently amended the Original Agreement, on or about March 6, 2008;  and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties wish to further modify the Original Agreement, as amended;  
 


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 


1. Subsection 1.1 of the original Agreement is now amended to read as follows: 
 


”1.1 Term of Services. The term of this Amendment shall begin on the date first noted above 
(the "Commencement Date") and shall end on the third anniversary of the Commencement Date, 
unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as provided for in Section 8 
of the Original Agreement.  The time provided to Contractor to complete the services required by 
this Agreement shall not affect the District’s right to terminate the original Agreement, as provided 
for therein."  
 


2. Subsections 2.1(1), 2.1(2), and 2.1(3) of the original Agreement are now amended and restated to 
read as follows: 


 
 "2.1  Meter Reading Compensation 


 1.  $1.50 for each meter accurately read, beginning on the Commencement Date and 
continuing for a period of one year following the Commencement Date.   


 2.  $1.55 for each meter accurately read, beginning one year following the Commencement 
Date and continuing for a period of one year thereafter (i.e., until the second anniversary of the 
Commencement Date).   


 3.   $1.60 for each meter accurately read, beginning two years following the Commencement 
Date and continuing for a period of one year thereafter (i.e., until the third anniversary of the 
Commencement Date)." 


 
3. A new subsection 2.8 is hereby added to the Original Agreement to read as follows: 
 


"2.8  Payment Terms and Limitation on Hours Worked. District agrees to pay Contractor for 
services actually performed in accordance with this Amendment, and in accordance with 
subsections 2.2 and 2.3 of the Original Agreement as full and complete compensation.  In no event 
shall the number of hours worked by Contractor to complete the services contemplated hereunder 
exceed 900 in any calendar year."   


 
4. Section 4 of the Agreement is rescinded in its entirety and replaced with the following: 


 
EXHIBIT A. SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT      Page 1 of 2 







 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT  Page 2 of 2 


 
"4.  AUTO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS Contractor, at its own cost and expense, must maintain 
automobile liability insurance for the term of this Agreement in an amount not less than $300,000.  
Such coverage shall include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily 
and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from 
activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of owned and non-owned 
automobiles.  Automobile coverage must be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office 
Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (ed. 12/90) Code 1 (“any auto”). 
 


5.  Subsection 6.1 of the original Agreement is now amended to delete the sentence fragment that 
appears at the end of that subsection and reads as follows: "The Contractor shall work no more". 


 
 


Except as expressly amended herein, the Original Agreement between the District and Contractor dated 
November 14, 2002, is hereby reaffirmed.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment as of the Commencement Date. 
 
 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  CONTRACTOR 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
Stephen Mack, General Manager    Dale Dross 
 
 
Attest:  _______________________ 
 Julie Kenny, District Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1281485.2 





		Item V-D - Dross Contract Amendment

		Item V-D.1 Res 09-23 Dross Second Amendment

		Item V-D.2 Exhibit A Dross Second Amendment

		"2.8  Payment Terms and Limitation on Hours Worked. District agrees to pay Contractor for services actually performed in accordance with this Amendment, and in accordance with subsections 2.2 and 2.3 of the Original Agreement as full and complete compensation.  In no event shall the number of hours worked by Contractor to complete the services contemplated hereunder exceed 900 in any calendar year."  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT RESERVE POLICY  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Consider approval of a District Reserve Policy. 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impacts. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
This purpose of this report is to discuss the adoption of a permanent reserve policy and 
the appropriate amount of reserves that the District should maintain.  
 
Reserve policies are common and recommended for public agencies.   They provide a 
“rainy day” fund for unanticipated events; establish a measure of financial health, and 
they are part of the process for determining how much capital spending an agency can 
afford.  
 
Over the past 10 years the District has worked hard to improve its financial condition.  
Today, that condition is good.  We are audited each year and recent audits have given 
the District good marks for financial accountability and openness.   Operational, 
economic, and other possible uncertainties suggest some level of reserves is needed.    
 
At the same time the District needs substantial infrastructure improvements, has an 
aggressive capital improvement program (CIP) and is asking for funding assistance for 
construct the projects in the CIP.  The annual revenues of the District are not sufficient to 
fund the needed CIP and funds for these projects will come in part from District reserves, 
loans, or grants.   Some measure of the District’s reserves is needed to determine how 
much of the District’s money is available to construct the CIP and still stay in good 
financial condition and how loans and grants can fit into the District’s long term financial 
picture.  A formal reserve policy which sets out the appropriate amount of District funds 
needed for unanticipated events,  will help identify reserves available for the CIP while 
ensuring the District stays in good financial condition.     


 







District Reserve Policy  2  
September 3, 2009 


The District has multiple funds in which it places its revenues.  These funds are listed in 
Table 1.  District Funds and Reserves.  The money in each fund, with the exception of 
the certificate of deposit at Redwood Credit Union, resides with Sonoma County.  
Apparently, the funds were set up in this manner in the late 1990’s.   
 
The funds can be characterized as restricted or non restricted.  Restricted funds have a 
sole purpose and can only be used for that purpose.   As such it is not appropriate to 
count these funds as being available in an unrestricted reserve discussion – the money 
in the restricted funds is not available for unanticipated events.    
 
Table 1 is based on historical practice; there is no record that this approach to fund setup 
was formally adopted by the Board.  Other historical practices include: 
 


• Operating revenues, the revenues collected in bimonthly billing, are deposited in 
the Operations Fund.  Surpluses in the Operating Budget were to be placed in the 
Operating Reserve with a target of $500,000 in the late 1990’s.   The Certificate of 
Deposit (CD) at Redwood Credit Union was funded by the Operating Reserve.   


 
• The annual assessment (Flat Charge) and connection fee were to be deposited in 


the Capital Improvement Fund (CIRF) which then would fund the restricted funds 
and any capital projects.  In the event that there was not enough revenue for this 
(and there hasn’t been) revenues would be transferred from the Operations Fund 
or the fund was depleted.   


 
• It’s important to note that one of the funds in Table 1, Private Placement Funding, 


contains the proceeds from a loan acquired in August 2008 to fund the CIP.  It is 
borrowed money. 


 
Money has built up in the various funds and the District has embarked on an aggressive 
CIP to improve the District’s inadequate and aging infrastructure.  The District has 
restructured its rates, has a policy in place for an annual cost of living increase in the 
base rate and water use rate, and is asking for funding assistance from other agencies 
to hslp fund the CIP.    What should be the appropriate level of reserves to guard against 
uncertainties, economic, disaster-related, or other?  How much money does the District 
have to fund the CIP?  
 
A quick review on the Internet showed that reserve policies mostly range between 25-
50% of annual operating budgets.  For the 2010 budget, we used the following reserve 
targets: 
 


• $200,000 cash for ongoing operations - equivalent to the Operations Fund 
• 10% of the Operating Budget revenues for a budget reserve for unanticipated 


expenses -   $218,332  
• 15% of the Operating Budget revenues for economic uncertainty -  $327,498  
• Capital Reserve of 25% of a nominal $1 million CIP - $250,000  
• Total Reserve Amount = $995,830  







District Reserve Policy  3  
September 3, 2009 


 
Some observations on the reserve policy used for the FY 2010 Budget and 
considerations for a formal reserve policy: 
 


• Use of a nominal $1 million for the Capital Reserve balances out swings in 
planned capital projects – some years there may be no construction planned; 
other years (like FY 2009) there may be a doubling up on the projects.  


 
• The 2010 reserve approach does not include having a reserve for annual debt 


payment expenses which are approximately $1.1 million.     
 


• The reserve policy amount sets a target which the annual budget should not go 
below.  One approach for flexibility is to allow going below the target if there is a 
plan to get above the target within a reasonable time.  The plan could involve 
raising rates over time, reducing CIP spending in a future year or some other cost 
reducing or revenue increasing approach. 


 
Comparing the unrestricted fund balance with the suggested policy reserve amount 
shows that the District currently has funds well in excess of the policy reserve.  The 
funds above the reserve policy identifies how much money is available for funding the 
District’s multi-year CIP.  Table 2 from the application to Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency for grant funding shows how the reserve policy can be used to 
identify available funds for multi-year financial planning.  In this particular instance, Table 
2 shows that currently the District does not have enough funds above reserve policy to 
complete the approved CIP.   
 
Staff recommends the policy reserve levels presented in this report with possible addition 
of an additional amount for debt payments.  Upon concurrence by the Board, staff will 
return with an ordinance that will formally establish the reserve policy. 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: POTENTIAL SALE AND DISPOSITION OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on progress on potential sale and disposition 
of District Property. 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff will present a verbal report on progress made on the potential sale of District property 
including a discussion of a map of District property and possible appraisal options. 





